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SUPREME COURT.

TUESDAY, JoLy 28.

Present, the chief justice, the second and third justices.

Court opened with the usual forms.

Grand jury called, and the following appeared and were
sworn.

Messrs. Joseph Robinson, James Livingston, Hermanus Rut-
gers, jun. Charles Le Roux, Abraham Boelen, Peter Rutgers,
Jacobus Roosevelt, John Auboynesu, Stephen Van Courtlandt,
jun. Abraham Lynsen, Gerardus Duyckinck, John Provost, Hen-
ry Lane, jun. Henry Cuyler, John Roosevelt, Abraham De Pey-
ster, Edward Hicks, Joseph Ryall, Peter Schuyler, Peter Jay,
merchants,

The chief justice charged the grand jury to prosecute the in-
quiry for the detection of the conspirators, and to present alt
erimes and offences from treasons down to trespasses.

A Tist of eighteen negroes recommended by the Judges this
day to his honour the lieutenant governor, to be inserted in a par-
dqn, in order for transportation.

Joshua Sleydall’s Jack, Henry Breasted’s Jack, Thomas Nib-
let’s Sandy, lsrael Horseﬁeld’s Ceeser,(0) Elizabeth Carpenter’s
Tickle, John Furman’s Harry, Edward Kelly’s London, David
Provost’s Low, Captain Browa’s Jeffery, Thomas Thomas’s York,
Peter Low?’s Sam, Samuel Meyers Cohen’s Windsor, Mr. Mur-
ray’s Jack and Adam, Robert Livingston’s Tom, Robert Bound's
Gosport, Hereules Wendover’s Toby, widow Hyer’s Tom.

The six following had been indicted for the conspiracy, but
their masters agreed te enter into recognizance to transport them
forthwith :

{07 After the secret of the plot had got air, it was observed by
sevelpl, as they declared afterwards, that the behaviour of muny
negres was wild and confused, thongh the cause of such extrava-
gance was not accounted for, till those wretches were impeached
and taken into custody ; all the negroes arraigned upon the indiet-
‘ment for the conspiracy, on the 26th of June, with Czsar, had
pleaded guilty ; but Cxsar was hardy, insisted upon his innocence,
and pleaded not guilty., Some endeavour was used by the counsel
at the bar, who knew the evidence affecting Czsar, to prevail with
him to confess his guilt, but ir vain; till at length one of those gen-
tlemen inspecting the indictment, observed colonel Moore’s Cito to
be indorsed thereon as 2 witness against him, whereupon he asked
‘Czsar whether he was acquainted with that Cate? at whlch Cesar
seemted confounded and immediately answered g-mlty
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Wolf’s Dick, Dr. Henderson’s Caésar, Corpelius Kortrecht’s
‘Prince, widow Van Zandt’s York, Charles Le Roux’s Quash,
captain Walton’s Jupiter.

s

TRIAL OF JOHN URY acas JURY.

P

. SUPREME COURT.
WEDNESDAY, JULY 20.

Present, the chief justice, the second and third justices.

The ng against Sarah Hughson, the daughter.

This criminal convicet being set to the bar, the court demand-
ed of her, what she had to say, why execution of her formex
sentence should not be awarded against her? she thereupon pro-
duced and pleaded bis majesty’s most gracious pardon » and the
same was read and allowed of,

The King against John Ury alias Jury.

The prisoner was brought to the bar, and the court proceeded
upon s trial, as followeth.

Clerk in court. Cryer, make proclamation for silence.

Cryer. Oyes! Our sovereign lord the king does strictly charge
and command all manner of persons to keep silence upon pain of
imprisonment.

‘Cryer. If any one can inform the king’s justices, the king’s
Attorney General for this province, or the inquest now to be
taken on behalf of our sovereign lord the king, of any treason,
murder, felony, or ‘any other misdemeanor committed or done
by the prisoner at the bar, let them come forth and they shall
be heardy,. for the prisoner now stands upon his deliverance.

Clerk. Cryer, make proclamation.

Cryer. O yes! You good men that are impanelled to inquire
between our sovereign lord the king, and Jobn Ury alias Jury,
the prisoner at the bar, answer to your names.

Clerk. John Ury alias Jury, hold up thy hand.

- These good men that are now called and here appear, are
those which are -to pass between you and our sovereign lord the
king, upon your life or death; if you challenge any of them,
you must speak as they couie to the bock to be sworn, and before
;hey are SWorn.

{The court apprized the prisoner of the nature and extent of
that liberty the law allowed hxm for makmg his c.hailenges to
the _]urors.

The prisoner challenging none, the court proceeded, and the
jury were sworn, to wit: William Hamersley, Gerardus Beek-
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man, John Shurmur, Sidney Breese, Daniel Shatford, Thomas
Behenna, Peter Fresneau, Thomas V‘a ilet, John Breese, John
Hastier, James Tucker, Brandt Schuyler,

Clerk. Cryer, make proclamation.

Cryer. O yes! Our sovereign lord the king does strictly charge
and command all manner of persons to keep silence upon pain of
imprisonment.

Clerk, You, gentlemen of the jury, that are now sworn,
lsok upon the prisoner, and hearken to his charge.

The prisoner stands indicted, for that, whereas a negro man
slave, called Quack, belonging to John Roosevelt of the eity of
New-York, merchant, on the eighteenth day of March, in the
fourteenth year of the reign of our sovereign tord, George 1I. by
the grace of God, king of Great Britain, &c. at the city of New-
York, into a certain dwelling house of our said lord the king,
which then was standing and being at the fort in the said city
of New-York, and was then in the possession of the hon. George
Clarke, esq. his majesty’s lientenant governor of the province of
New-York, did enter, and of his malice afore-thought, lighted
fire, then and there wickedly, maliciously, voluntarily, wilfully,
and feloniously did put, and with the said lighted fire, he the
said negro man slave called Quack, the dwelling house aforesaid
and then and there wickedly, &c. did set on fire, and burn, and
wholly consume, and destm}, against the peace of our said
sovereign lord the king, his crown and dignity: and that John
Ury alias Jury, private school-master, on the twenty-second day
cf February, inthe said fourteenth year of the reign of our said
iord the king, and divers other days and times, before the felony
and huming aforesaid, in form aforesaid, done and perpetrated
at the city of New-York, of his mahce afore-thought, wickedly,
maliciously, voluntarily, wilfully, and feloniously, did counsel,
abet, procure and encourage the aforesaid negro man slave called
Quack, the felony and burning aforesaid, in form aforesaid
comraitted and perpetrated, to commit and perpetrate, in most
pernicicus example of all others in like case offending, contrary
to the form of the statutes in such case made and provided, and
against the peace of our sovereign lord the king, his crown and
dignity.

Upon this indictment he has been arraigned, and hath pleaded
thereunto, not guilty, and for his trial hath put himself upon God

_and his conntry, which country you are.

Your charge is to inquire, whether he be guilty of the felony

whereof he stands indicted, or pot guilty, If you find him

7
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guilty, you are to inqguire what gbods and chattels, lands and
tenements he had at the time when the felony was committea,
or at any time since. If you find him not guilty, youare to say
s0, and no more : and hear your evidence.

Of counsel for the king—the Attorney General, Mr. Murray,
Mr. Alexander, Mr. Smith, Mr. Chambers. _

The attorney general, Richard Bradley, esq. addressing him-
self to the conrt and jury, opened the indictment, and proceeded
as followeth. .

In order to maintain the charge against the prisoner, upon
this indictment, we shall produce to you the following evidence,
to wit ¢ .

That the prisoner was actually concerned in the plot to burn
the king’s house and this city, and murder the inhabitants. -

That he has frequently been at Hughson’s house, in company
with Hughson, his wife and daughter, and Margaret Kerry, and
with divers negroes, talking with them about the plot, and
counselling and encouraging them to burn the king’s house and
the town, and to kill and destroy the iphabitants ; that the negre
- Quack, who burnt the king’s house, was present at one or more
of those times, when the prisoner counselled and encouraged
the negroes as aforesaid ; that he advised themr what would be
the fittest time to set the Epglish church on fire ; and that the
prisoner, as a popish priest, baptized Hughson, his wife and
daughter, and Kerry, and also divers negroes, and told them
then, and at several other times, that he could forgive sins, and
that he forgave them their sins relating to the plot.

That when he was with the negroes at Hughson’s house, he
used to make 2 round ring on the floor with chalk, or some
other thing, and stand in the middle of it with a cross in his
hand, and swear the negroes into the plot, and that they should
not discover either the plot or him, or any other person concerned
in it, though they were to die for it.

That some time last winter, he (at Hughson’s house} swore
Hughson, his wife and daughter, and Kerry, and several negroes
into the plot.

That he went by several names, and thet when he baptized
the negroes, or any of the conspirators, he used to tell them he
forgave them all the sins they should commit about the plot.

We shall likewise produce to you, a letter from general
Oglethorpe to this honour, ‘our governor, whereby it appears,
that some time before the plot broke out here, the Spaniards
had employed emissaries to burn all the magazines and con-
siderable towns in the English North Americe, and that many
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priests were employed, under pretended appellations of physi-
cians, dancing-masters, and such ike occupations, and under
such pretentces to get admittance into, and confidence in families.

This, gentlemen, was their hellish device to set on foot and
carry on the late dreadful conspiracy among us; and the prison-
er, in con_]unctlon with Hughson (as we now have reason to
believe) drew in the rest of the conspirators.

Gentlemen, what 1 have alleged, and much more, you will
hear fully proved against the prisoner, by the witnesses for the
king on this trial : but before we enter upon their examination,
give me leave to say a few words concerning the heinousness of
this prisoner’s oﬁ'ences, and of the popish religion in general,
which I.shall speak but very briefly to, as there are several
other gentlemen of counsel fer the king on this trial, and as I
have not had either health or leisure to prepare to say much on
this occasion.

Gentlemen, the late dreadful conspiracy to burn the 1nno"s
house, and this whole town, and to kill and destroy the inhabit-
ants, which the prisoner, as well as Hughson advised and en-
couraged, and swore many of the conspirators to join and bear
their parts in, are crimes of too black and inhuman a nature to
need any aggravation, and no doubt, the prisoners engaging at
the peril of his own life, in so destructive, so bloody and dan-
gerous an enterprize, proceed from his being employed in it by
other popish priests and emissaries, and his zeal for that murderous
- religion ; for the popish religion is such, that they hold it not cnly
lawful but meritorious to kill and destroy all that differ in opinion
from them, if it may any ways serve the mterest of their de-
testable religion ; the whole scheme of which seems to be a vest-

Iess endeavour to extirpate all other religions whatsoever, but
 more especially the protestant religion, which they maliciously
call the Northern heresy : and to attain this ‘wicked end, their
first trick is, by subtle arguments tg persuade the laity out of
their senses, by shewing them a seeming necessity for their be-
fieving as their church believes, if they tender their own salva- -
tion ; and this, with many more frauds, the church of Rome has
artfully devised to get an absolute dominion over the consciences,
that they may the more easily pick the pockets of credulous peo:
ple : witness the pretended pardons and indulgences of that crafty
and deceitful church, and their masses to pray. souls out of pur-
gatory, which they quote (or rather wrest) scripture for, when
no such thing is to ‘be found there ; but it is a mere invention and
cheat of their own to gull the lanty of their money.

Then they have their doetrine of transubstannanon, which is
“so big with absurdities that it is shocking to the common sense
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and reason of mankind ; for were that doctrine true, their priests-
by a few words of their mouths, can make & God as often as -
they please ; but then they eat bim too, and this they have the -
impudence to call honouring and adoring him. Blasphemous
wretches ! for hereby they endeavour to exalt themselves above
God himself, inasmuch as the creator must necessarily be greater
than his creature.

These and many other juggling tricks they have in their hocus
pocus, bloody religion, which have been stripped of all therwr
wretched disguise, and fully exposed in their own colours by
many eminent divines, but more particularly by the great Dr.
Tillotson, whose extraordinary endowments of mind, his intmi-
table works, and exemplary piety and charity have gamed him
such umiversal esteem and applause throughout all the - protest-
ant world, 4s, no doubt, will endure as long as the protestant
name and rehglon lasts, which I hope will be to the end of
time.

Gentlemen, when you have heard the witnesses prove to you
what I have alleged against the prisoner, I make no doubt but
you will, for your oaths sake, .and for your own country’s peace
“and future safety, fied him guwilty.

Witnesses for the king.—Mr. George Joseph Moore, clerk in
court, sworn.

He proved the arraignment and conviction of Quack, on the
twenty-eighth and twenty-ninth days of May last, who set fire
to the fort.

Mary Burton sworn.

Mr. Chambers. Mary, give the court and jury an account of
what you know concerning this conspiracy to burn down the
town and murder and destroy the inhabitants, and what part yon
know the prisoner at the bar has acted in it: tell the whole story
from the beginning, in your own method, but speak slow, not -
so hastily as you usually do, that the court and Jury may the
better understand you.

Mary Burton. Why 1 have seen Ury very often at Hughson’s
about Christmas apd new-year, and then he stayed away about a
fortnight or three weeks, and returned again about the time that
Hogg’s goods came to our house. I have often seen him in com-
pany with Hughson, his wife and daughter, and Peggy, and
several negroes, talking about the plot, burning the fort first,
then the fly, and then the dock ; and upon some of the negroes
g‘y&ng they were afraid of bemg damned for bemng concerned
n the plot, I heard Ury tell them they necd not fear doing of
it, for that he could forgive them their sins as well as God Al-
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mighty, and would forgive them. They were to burn the whole
town and to kill the people: Ury was to be captain of a com-
pany of negroes, and he was to begin the fire where he lodg-
ed ;(p) that when they were once together above stairs, Ury,
Hughson, his wife and Peggy, they called Mary, and 1 went
up, but when I came up stairs, Ury had a book in his hand, and
bid me go away, and asked me what business 1.had there, and
said they did not call me, they called Mary Hughson, and he
was angry and shut the door too agajn, and I looked under it,
and there was a black ring upon the floor, and things in it that
seeraed to look like rats, I don’t know what they were.(g)—
That another time 1 heard him talking with the negroes, Quack
and others, about the plot, and turned the negroes out of the
room, and asked me to swear? and I said I would swear if they
would tell me what I was going to swear, but they would have
me swear first; and Hughson apd his wife went and fetched
silks and gold rings, and offered them to me in case I would
swear, but | would not, and they said 1 was a fool; and Ury
then told me be could forgive sins as well as God, I answered I
thought it was out of his power. That one night, some time
about new-year, 1 was listening at the door of the room upon
the stairs, where there was Ury, Hughson, bis wife and daugh-
ter Sarah, Vaarck’s Ceesar, Auboyneaw’s Prince, Philipse’s Cuff
and other negroes ; and I looked through the door and saw up-
on the table a black thing like a child, and Ury had a book in his
hand and was reading, but 1 did not understand the language ;
and having a spoon in my hand, I happened to let it drop upon
the floor, and Ury came out of the room, mnping after me
down stairs, and hLe fell into a tub of water which stood at the
foot of the stairs, and I ran away. When they were doing
any thing extraordinary at mights, they would send me to bed.
Prisoner.  You say you have seen me several times at Hugh-
son’s, what clothes did I usually wear? _
Mary Burton. 1 cannot tell what clothes you wore partice-
larly.
- grisoner.. That is strange, and know me so weil,

{2} At Croker’s, near the coffee-house, by the long hridge.

(¢) See Sarah Hughson’s examination, § 9. and note letter { £y
thereon. What Mary saw was by looking under the door, which
it may be supposed, afforded but an obscare view, and the negrues
perhaps - pulling their black toes backwards. and forwazds, Mary
‘might be puzzled what to make of them. But Sarah Hughson and
Kane agree with Burton, that there was a ceremony used with a

riug or circle upon the floor, at swearing the confederates.- ’
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M. Burton.. 1 have seen you in several clothes, but you chiefly-
wore a riding coat, and often a brown coat trimmed with’black”

Prisoner. I never wore any such coat. .

Prisoner. What time of the day did 1 use to come to Hugh-
son’s ¢ - ' '
M. Burton. You used chiefly to come in the night- txme, and
when 1 have been going to bed I have seen you undressing in -
Peggy’s room, as if you were to lie there; but I cannot say
_that you did, for you were always gone before I was up in- th\e '
MOTNing. -
Prisoner. 'What room was Iin when I called Mary, and’
you came up, as you said ?

M. Burton. In the great room- up stairs.

Prisoner. 'What answer did the negroes make when 1 oﬂ'ered
to forgive them their sins, as you said?

M. Burton. 1 don’t remember,

William Kane, soldier, sworn. ‘

_ Mr. Chambers. Kane, will you give the court and jury am .
‘account of what you know of the prisoner at the bar, and of

his being concerned in the conspiracy for burnmg the fort, and

the town, and murdering the mhabltauts gwe the whole ac-

count at large.

William Kane. I know the prisoner very well, I have seen
him at Croker’s, at Coffins, and Hughson’s; and particularly
with Daniel Fagan, Jerry Corker, and one Plummer, and seve-
ral negroes, at Hughson’s. Jerry Corlter was one of the first
that brought me into the plot. One day before Christmas last, I
was standing sentry at the governor’s door, and Jerry Corker
coming out, I being dry asked him for beer ; Jerry said he would
get some, that be had rum in his pocket, and would make flip,
and then he went in and made it in a copper pot, and told me -
it was with loaf sugar, I drank a draught of it ; and when | was-
relieved at night, Corker came into the guard room, and.asked
me if I would go to Croker’s at the fighting cocks, where there
was to be a chiistening by a Romish priest: we went thither -
and stayed till past ten o’clock, but the people did not come that
night: the next night Corker and I went there again, but the .
people were not there: the third night we went to New-street,
to the bouse-of one Coffin, a pediar, there they had a chiid and -
Ury christened it, and read Latin; three aeted as priests and
handed the book about. Ury put salt into the child’s mouth, sprin- -
kled it thrice, and crossed it. That Ury and Corker there en~
deavoured to persuade me to.be a Roman eatholic ; Ury said it
was best to be @ Roman, they -could forowe sips for any thing

L081
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ever 3o bad ; I told him I dld Dot believe lnm, and Cozker told
mwe that’ Ury and all priests could forgive sins.. That Ury was
present at Hughson's, when John Hughson swore me and his

Tfather and brothers into the plot, there was Quack and forty or

fifty negroes there at the same time ; we were to burn the town
and destroy the people. David Johnson was there, and Ury
tapped him on the shoulder, and they went into a room together
and stayed a quarter of an hour, and when they came back
Johnson said d—n me, but we will burn the Dutch and get their

money. That by Ury’s persuasions that he could forgive sms,
many were brought in to be concerned : Ury was near me. when

. I was sworn, and the Hughsons and I took him to be one of

the head ;' Ury wanted to christen me, but I would not, and he
would not speak to me, nor before me for a long time, for he
could not abide me because | refused to become a Roman, till
after he knew that I was concerned in the plot, and even then

‘he did not much care for me : Ury was by when Hugbson swore

eight negroes nto the plot in a ring, and it was then talked
among them-of burning the fort, and Quack (who was present)

‘was at that time pitched upon to do it, in the presence of Ury,

who he believed might and did hear it. Jerry Corker-told me, that
the English church was intended to be burnt on Christmas day
last, but Ury put it eff, and said that when the weather was
better, then there would be a fuller congregation. |

Prisoner—You say you have seen me very often, you saw me
at Coffin’s, you saw me several times at Hughson’s, pray what
clothes did: you see me in?

Kane—I have seen you in-black, | have seen you in a yellow-
ish great coat, and sometimes in & stralght bodied coat, of much

the zame colour. -

" Prisoner—~—What time of the day have you seen me at Hugh-
son’k, and what did | say to you?

Kane——I have seen you there chiefly at mghts -and you told
me you could forgive me my sins, and there would be no fear

-of dammation, and you wanted to christén me.

Prisoner—You say you saw me shristen a child in New-streﬂ

. how was the cbild drest, and what ceremony did I use, and who

was present there then ? ;
Kane—The child was not naked, it was dressed as usual' and
you put it on your left arm, and sprinkled st with water three

- times, and put salt'in its mouth, and crossed lt, as | said before
_there were about nine persons present. ‘

- Prisoner—Did. [ use any thing bes:des sélt and water
- Ka; Ls.-—-l\ct that 1 saw.
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Pnsoner—Who were. present 4t the christening? -

“Kane—Right or nine persons, I think ; there was Jerry Corker,
Daniel Fagan, Coffiriy yoli, the mother of the chﬂd myself,
and two.er three more. -

‘Prisoner—You say you saw me at Hughsnn’s several times,
what room was 1 usually m?

Kane—Sometimes in one room,. andsometxmes in another

Prisoner—At what time was | there 4

Kane—At night, - -

Prisoner——What habit have you seen me wear ? 3 :

Kane—A black coat, yellowish - surtont, and . sometlmes a
light coloured close-bodied cape coat.

Prisoner—What did I offer in order to - mduce you to become
a Roman catholic ?

Kane—Forgiveness of all my sins past, and what 1 should do
in this case; and ] said to you, what a fine thing itis to be
- of such a religion, when 2 priest can forgne sm- and send one
to Heaven. S

- Mr. Chambers—-—-CalI Sarah Hughson. '

" Prisoner—1I except against-her being sworn, for she has been
oonvmted and received sentence of death for being concerned
in this conspiracy, and therefore cannot be a witness.

Attorney General—But Mr. Ury, she has received his. ma_}es-
ty’s most gracious pardon, which she has pleaded in court this
morning, and it has been allowed of, and therefore the law says,
she is good evidence.. H, Hawk. title pardon. Chap. 37, § 48.

Court—Her pardon has been pleaded and allowed, and by law
she may be admitted.

Sarah Hughson sworn. '

Mer. Chambers—Sarah, do you give the conrt and Jury an ace
count of what you know of Ury’s bemg concerned in this con-
spiracy.

5. Hughson—1 know h}m, and have often seen him at my
father’s, late in last fall chiefly : I have seen him there at nights
in company with negroes, when they have been talking of burn-
‘ing the town and killing the white- people. I have seen him
,‘ fnake 2 ring with “chalk on the floor, which he made the ne-
groes stand round and put their left foot in, and he swore them
‘with a cross in his hand, to burn and destroy the town, and tg

cut their master’s and “mistress's throats.  He swore Bastian,
Vaarck’s Cizsar, Auboyneau’s Prince, and Waltér's Quack

he swore them to keep secret, not to discover him or any body
else, if they were'to die for it. I have beard Ury, and the
negroes, talk of burning the fort; and he-said, if that did not doy
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they.were tb'begin at the east-end of the town, with a strong
-easterly wind, and that would go through the whole town. . He

" asked me to swear to the plot, and said-that { should have all

o

my sins forgiven, if 1. kept all secret; and he swore me on an
English book, and my parents. and Peggy were by ; and he
SWoTe: Peggy too ; and I heard him tell her, that all the sins
which she had commltted should be forgiven her ; aud he told
her, that priests could forgive sins as well as God, 1f they would
follow thew directions. That he used to christen negroes there ;
he christened Ceesar, Quack, and other negroes, crossed them
on the face, had water and other things; and he told them he
would absolve them from all their sins,

. Prisoner—How did [ swearyon?

8. Hughson—On a book : I believe it was an English book
| . Prisoner—Who was present when I swore you ? >

8. Hughson—My parents, Peggy, Kane, and others.

- Prisuner—You say | baptized several people, pray what cere-
mony did [ use at baptmng 2(r)

. 8. Hughson—When you baptized the negroe you made a
cross upon their faces, and sprinkied water, and you used some-
thing else, but 1 cannot tell what ; and you talked ina lancruage '
which | did not understand.

Prisoner—Whom did I baptize ?

5. Hughson—Cwesar, Prince, Bastian, Quack Cuffee, and
several otlier negroes.(s)

(r) Since the notes upon the extracts out of Ury’s journal were made, it

~ hus been discuvered, that Jobn Ryan, whose son Timothy, Ury has regis-

tered to have been b'lptxzed by bim, wus an Irish servant brought hither
the summer before the plot broke out, by cok Cope when he came to em-
barz fur the expedition to the West-Indies ; which. Ryan, it is said, is a
professed Roman catholie, still residing in this city. See extracts "from
Ury's journal, a.nd notes thereon, arte 269.

(s) The behaviour of this miserable wretch was, upon this occasion, be.
youd expectation, composect and decent. She seemed to be touched with
remorsy and compunction. What came from her, was delivered with all
the visible marks and semblance of sincerity and truth ; insomuch, that the

" court, jury, and many of the andiénce, looked upon herat this instant to be

under real conviction of mind for her past offences, which was somewhat
surprizing to those who were wztnesses te the rest of her conduct, since
ber condemnation and several reprieves. Her evidence, as the reader msy
observe, was regular and uniform, and agreed with the account of the ploty
s to the persons zind things she spoke to, and was chiefly confirmed by
many concurring evidences’; and theref'ore for once, it sdems but reason-
able and just+to allow, that she spoke the truth: She wus brought this
morning to plead her pardon out of the condemned hole, where she had
been confined from the time of her cowdemnation ; and when her pardon

" was pleaded,.she ‘was taken from court into 4 room' in custofly of the un-

der-siumff' where she was to be near at hand for calt upon this trial, and
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Mr. Murray, counsel for. the king—If your honours - please, 1
have a piece of evidence,; which' I would not-offer umtil I have
cpened the nature of it ; it has been hinted atby Mr. Attorney,
i the opening ; whlcb is a letter from. general Oglethorpe to
the lieutenant governor, informing him, that a party of Indians
had returned to Georgia, on the eighth of May last, from war
against the Spaniards, who in an engagement with a party of
Spanish horse near Augustine, had taken one of them prisoner,
and had brought him to the general 3 that the Spamard n his ex-
amination before the magistrates in Georgia, had given some in-
telligence of a villainous design of a very extraordinary nature,
that the Spaniards had employed emissaries to burn all the maga-
zines and considerable towns in the English North America,
thereby to prevent the subsistence of the English fleet in-the
West-Indies ; and that for this purpose, -many priests were em-
ployed, who pretended to be physicians, dancing-masters,
and other kinds of accupations ; and under that pretence to en-
deavour to gain admittance and confidence in private families.

I only offer this by way of inducement and illustration of what
is stricily evidence, and what I think by law I may; itisto
shew in general, that there was a plot ; [and cxted some au-
thorities out of the state trials.)

Court—Mr. Murray, you must prove that signing to be gene-
ral Oglethorpe’s hand.

It was proved accordmgly : and so much of the letier read
as relates to the present purpose ; which followeth :

Frederica, in G‘eorgm, May 16, 1741.
SIR—-A party of our Indians returned the eighth instant from
war against the Spaniards; they had an engagement with a
party of -Spanish horse, just by Augustine, and -brought one of
them prisoner to me: he gives me an account of three Spanish
sioops and a snow, privateers, who are sailed from Aungustine to
the northward, for the provision vessels, bound from the north-

. there she remained il wanted and was sent for; and the witnesses deli-
vered their testimony iz the orderof time they are here placed, out of the
hearing of each other, till each respective personhad given their evidence
—which is mentioned, that the reader may more particularly observe the
correspondence and remarkable agreement between her evidence, Kane’s
and Mary Burton’s, which must be seen by every one that will be at the
pains to Take thecomparison : and Sarah was under ground before and a8t
the time Kane had been committed; so that there could have been no con-
fabulation between them, nor could Mary Burton bavé intercourse with
either, who was the first white évidence that impeached Kane, and Kane
b{h kis confessnon conﬁrmed her endcnce, d now ali three conﬁrm eacn
O 21'. P 3 i
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ward to the West-Indies, hopmg thereby- to supply themsereS'
with: flour, of which they are in want. Besides this account
which-he gave to me, he mentioned many partrculurs in his ex-
amination before our magistrates,

Some intelligence I had of a’villainous deexgn oi' a very extra-
‘ordimary nature,-and if true, very important, viz. that the
. Spaniards had employed ermissaries to burn all the magazines an_d
considerable towns mr the English North-America, thereby t
prevent the subsisting of the great expedition and fleet in the
West-Indies: and that for this purpose, .many pnests were em-
ployed, who pretended to be physieians, dancing-masters, and
other such kinds of ©occupations ; and under that pretence to get
admittance and eonfidence in families. As1 could not give credit
to-these advices, since the thing was too horrid for any prince
to order, I asked him concerning them ; but he would not own
he knew any thing about them. -

I am, sir, Yyour very humble servant, '
Superscribed, - - JAMES OGLETHORPE
To the honourabie G'eoro‘e Clarke, Esgq.
- Licutenant Governor of New-York.(t)

{#) What would make one give vet more heed to this piece of intelli-
- gence, -is, a paragraph inthe American newspapers, the winter-before
this conspirucy broke out, extracted from those of London, viz. in the
Bostun Gazette, first December, South-Carolina Gazette, twenty-fifth
Deceinber, and the Pennsylvania Gazette first of January, the last of
which has it as taken from the London papcrs of the sev enth of October,
1740. -
In order for the reader to. make the most he can of i, it is thought
proper also to insert the introduction to it ; the whole is said to be an ex-
tract ot a letter from the Hague as foll oweth :—
The Marquis de Fenelon, ambassador fiom France, continues to exhort
the states general to make 2 common cause with his court for ma:ntammg'
the treaty of Uitrecht, in regard to the possessions of his Catholic ’\‘Iajesty
in Amorica; and for this purpose that their bigh mightinesses would join
a2 squadron with these of his most Christian Majesty, in order to prevent
the commerce in the West.Indies from being interrupted by any power
whatsoever : the deputies of their high mightinesses manifested their
sarprize at the proposition of this ambassador, and told bim, that it was
not by the English that their merchants, who traffic to the West-Indies,
. had in the least suffered; but that it was the continual vexations and in-

jurioud treatment they had et with from the Spaniards, that they had
only cause to compluio of ; and their high mightinesses had caused re-
presentations to be made upon this subject at the court of Spain, and had
reiterated their mstances, but 4ll in vain ; wherefore their high mighti-
nesses had found 1t very necessary to grant the protection to their snbjects
anl to maintain the 'berty of commerce,  which treaties concluded in the
most solemn manner, had privile ged them to do

The states general Tooks with 2 watchful eye mmn the des:qns of the

. egurt of France, which are, as it is pos:tnrely assured, to tarn the tables

spos the English in America, by exciting’ revolts and. dlsturhances in their
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- Courf—Mr. Murray, have you any more witnesses ?
© Mr. Murray—Sir, we shalk rest here at present.

Court—Mvr. Ury, bave you any witnesses ; ; for now is your'
tumne to produce them ? :

Pnsoner——\‘lay it please the King’s judges, and the gent]emen
ef the jury—It is very incongruous to reason to think that I
can have any hand or be any way concerned in ‘this plot, if
these things be duly weighed : that after the discovery of the.
conspiracy and the execution of many for it, that I should act
such a lunatick part if I were guilty as to.continue in this city,
join with Mr. Campbell, and not ouly so, but publicly advertise

possessions, and by domg every thing in its power to traverse the desxgns
and even to distress the English, -

The letter writer best knew what assurances there were concerning
this matter ; ; surely these piecesof intelligence could not arise from nozh-
ing ; whenever there is much fmoke, itis a necu.ssary conclusion thele .
must be some fire,

About the time, or soon after, we had the several fires in this ¢ity, as
related in the introduction, one Luke Barrington an Irishman, a professed
papist {who came to live in the county of Ulster sume short time before,
and setup for a school-master, and kept school at Little-Britain} being
in company with James Mc Claghry, Peter Mullender and several others 3
Mullender drank king George's health to Barrington, who takmg the ba.
son of liquur into his hand, drank king Philip’s, or Philip or Spain’s.
health ; Mc Claghry thereupon told Barrington, it was wrong in him to
drink the king of Spain’s health in that compuny, especially as it was war -
with Spain, and if any would izform against him, he might be hanged on
that tree, pointing to a tree nesr by: to which Ba.m:,gton replied, he
scorned to dissemble for any body ; that king Philip was bis king ; and if
he would come over with his arty, he would tuke up arms for him, and
knock ail the English on the head. Burrington stayed 2 day and two nights
afterwards in that neighbourhoed, and then leftit. Of this Mc Liag‘hry
afterwards made oath befrre gne of bis majesiy’s council for this provinee,
living near tnat neighbourhood, who caused diigent inquiry to be made
after Barrington, in erderto apprehend him ; but he wus not met with at
that time ; though it was said, be was taken up some time afierwards, and
committed to King'ston jail, and from thence made escape.

It seems this school-master came first inio those purts the fill before ;
he was a young man about five and twenty : he pretended to be a minis-
ter's son of the church of England, in Ireland ; knew many of the Irish
gentry, and could give an account of their 1am11u:a ‘he suid he Jeft his
father in a pet, had travelled into Italy,.and confessed to somé that he
turned Roman cutholic there : and as the neighbourhood talked much of
bis being an extraordinary scholar, and of his understa: di ing several lan-
guages, the counselior several times sent him an invitation to his house,
bat he never went, ‘nor did, that gentieman ever sge him ~But it was said
that some time after his arrival there, he chiefly kept company with the
Irish servants, of which they have many in that part of the country, and
the greatest aumber of them Roman c4thm:cs, and tLey kad freéquent
meetings together.

-So-that this is a fourth instance of suspxcmus bchml‘masters mfestmg
these parts, correspomdent to general Oglethorpe’s letter-of advice. Thus
inan, Ury the priest, Holta dancing-master, and John Corry an Irisbman,
-a dancing-master and professed papist.
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myself for teaching of grammer(v) yea further, that I should
stil continue even after the caution Mr. Webb gave me a week
and.a few days before I was taken into custody he told me M.
Chambers told him that the eyes of this city were fixed on me,
and that I was suspected to be a Roman priest and thought to
be in the plot I answered my innocency would protect me I
valued not what the world said, again another instance that
‘must free me from this plot is when Mr. Campbell went to take
possession of Huson’s bouse his daughter refusing to go out and
she swearing like'a life guardman I took up the cause Mr,
Campbell not exerting himself as I thought was proper at that
time and told her if she would not go out quietly I would take
another method with her for I 'would have no such wicked per-
son (as she was said to be) livé where 1 was to dwell now reason
meust pronounce me ‘innocent for had [ been engaged in  their
scheme my guilt my fears would have forced me to have acted
in a very different manner rather to have soothed her and gave
her liberty to stay till provided for instead of not shewing her the
least countenance and further what ¢orroborates my non know!-
edge of this plot is that the negro who confessed as it is said that
be set fire to the fort did not mention me in all his confession
doubtlesshe wouldnothave neglected and passedover sucha person
as I am said to be namely a priest and if ‘he was bound by any
oath or oaths as he confest it shewed he thought it or them of
no value and therefore would have confessed and laid open the
whole scheme and all the persons he knew concerned in it but
more especially the priest as it is said I am and what is still more
strong for my innocency is that neither Huson his wife nor the
creature that was hanged with them and all that have heen put
to death since did not once name me certainly gentlemen if I
am a priest as you take me fo be I could not be so foolish asto
engage myself in so absurd a contrivance as to blind myseif with
a cord for negroes or what is worse profligate whites the scum
of this earth superior in villany to the knights of the post to make
an halter for me gentlemen as there is a great unknown and
tremendous being whom we ¢all God I never knew or saw Huson
his wite or the creature that was hanged with them to my know-
ledge living dying or dead or the negro that is said to havefired the
fort excepting in his last noments but put the case I had knowa
Huson’s and had been at his house is it to be inferred from thence
that I must be acquainted with his \flllamy or knew his secrets
and as he kept a pub ic house which is open and free for all is it

_ ( ¢). Theve was no tizme to his ad_vert:xsment a8 he remarked.
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reasonable to thmk that all or any man being seen at Huson’s,
must make him or them culpable or chargeable with his villainy
surely no for if so sad would be the case of many gentlemen who
in travelling the countries in England who have used bad houses
or inns and lit'into- the company of highwaymen who by ‘their
garb and conversation they took for some honest country gentle-
man or tradesaan and yet these have.not been in the least sus-
pected but I fear all this trouble of mine springs from and is
grounded upon, the apprehensions of my beifg a Roman priest,
and therefore must be a plotter some believing there can'be no
mischief in a country but a priest (if there) must be in it say they
that in the chain of general woes the first and the last link must
be tied to the priest’s girdle. But gentlemen 1 must assuge you
from readmg and conversation I believe no priest wouid hold a
confederacy with negroes they are too wise too cunning to trust
such sort of gentry it is not men of fortune good sense and learn-
ing they care to meddle with or entrust in such affairs as plots
excepting they be men of their own kiduey of their own way of
thinking in religion supposing a priest could be so foolish or become
0 non compos mentes as to plot in ghort a priest a joint contriver
of ﬁrmg a fort a celebrater of masses a dlepemer of absolutions
as it'is said I am so long passed by such a:particular person for-
gotten No gentlemen you must think and believe he would have
been the next person after the discovery of the plot that would
have been brought on the carpet And further what is of great
note iz that Huson was sworn to be the whole projector and
carrier on of the plot and if these witnesses-knew me so well as
they pretend to how came it about what reason can be assigned

-. why they did not bring me out before what not know any thing

of me before I came to prison, doubtless they would have been
eagar to have betrayed me when the scheme was disccvered, for
being a priest and consequenﬂ} artful and cunning they w ould
have been afraid of my escaping No if I had been engaged they
would have soon informed thinkimg to have saved their own lives
kpowing how this government stands affected to mch gentlemen,
And as to the second indictment wherein—

Court~—Mr. Ury, if you have any witnesses to examine, it is
more proper you «hou}d do that now, and make your defence
afterwards.

Prisoner—If that be the pleasure of the _]udges, Ihave severai
witnesses 3 I desire M. Croker may be calied.

Mr. Croker called and sworn—Prisoner—As I have lod ged at
your house for some time, you can best give an account of my
manner of life and conversation ; and pray first mform the hing'=

139)
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jﬁdge aud the jury, if you ever saw any negroes come after me.

Croker-—-No, I never saw any negroes come after you.

Prisoner—Pray give an account of what you know of me.

Croker—Mr. Ury came to my house the summer before last,
and stayed a week ; and then returned to Bwlington, and came
back last November, and said he was going further; but I pre-
vailed upon him to stay, to teach my son latin, for whlch 1 was
to give him his lodging and diet. He taught Norwood’s children,
and Col. Beekman’s daughter to write and cypher. Some time
ago he went to Staten-island, and preached there, and said he
‘was paid for it: he lodged at my house* from November till a
litile before Campbell took Hughson’s house ; and while he was
with me, he kept pretty good hours; sometimes he came home
by eight, ornine, or ten o’clock, and sometimes staid out till
eleven or twelve at mght. He once went to Brunswick this
spring, before the fort was burnt, as I heard, or else I do not
know that he lay out of my house ; that once talking of negroes,
I heard him say, he did not think them proper objects of salva-
tion. He used to go up stairs sometinres, light a candle i the
day time, and lock himself up in a room alone.

Attorney General—Pray, Mr. Croker, was you in town all the
time he lodged at your house ?

Croker—No, I have been out for a day or so.

Attorney General—Pray Mr. Croker what hours d.!d the pri-
soner usually come home at?

Croker—Sometimes sooner and sometimes later : I have known
him stay out sometimes till eleven or twelve o’clock, once or
twice later ; I asked him why he stayed so late, and where he had
been? he comwonly told me he had been at Mr. Webb’ ; and
sometimes at some other private houses.

Attorney Geperal—When did Ury come to lodge at your
house, and when did he leave it? :

Croker—He came to my house in November last, and left it a
little before Campbell went to live at Hughson’s house.

Attorney General—Have you ever heard him preach ?

Croker-—~Yes, once, and he then said he was to preach again
the next Sunday ; and in his prayer before sermon, he prayed
Afor his majesty king George, and all the royal family. (o)
~ Joseph Webb'ealled for the prisoner and sworn.

Prisoner—Mr. Webb, I desre you will give an account of
what you know of me..

{(w) Which is beyond what any other witness says, and contrary
-te Ury’s own p etended principles of a non juror..
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‘Webb—1 have known Mr. Ury since November last, I was
then at work at John Croker’s, at the fighting cocks, and hearing

him reading Latin and Enghsh and thinking he read well, en- =

guired of Croker who he was? he told me he was a schoolmaster
lately come from Philadelphia ; and from this I became acqugmted
with him, and I asked him if he would teach a child of mine:
and he said he would, if Croker would give him liberty of com-
ing to his house ; whlch Croker agreed to; and I sent my child
to him, and he taught him Latin; and aﬁer this I recommended
him to Col. Beekman, to teach his daughter to write and cypher;
and he and I growing more intimate, and I observing a poor and
mean appearance in his habit, I thought his pocket might be
‘answerable to it; and I gave him an invitation to my house, and
told him he should be welcome at my table noon and night, at
any time, when he saw proper; and he frequently came to my
house accordingly all the winter : that he used often to stay at my-
house late in discoursing, sometimes on one subject, sometimes on
another ; and has stayed there now and then till eleven or twelve
o’clock at night, and I have often gone home with him to his
lodging at those hours. ~ Mr. Ury told me he was a non juring
minister ; having asked him who ordained him, he answered me,
the senior non juror in England: I have heard him preach, and
have heard him say, such a2 day is my sacrament day, and he
must be at sacrament.

Attorney General--Did he say he must take the sacrament, or
be at sacrament, or administer the sacrament ¢

‘Webb-—I cannot be sure, but I remember he said it was his
sacrament day.

Attorney General-—Was it Sunda}s or working days he said
were his sacrament days?

‘Webb—1 cannot be sure, but I think I have heard him name
botk.

Attorney General—-Do you know any thing of his bu} ing of
wafers, or going 10 a confectioner’s ?

Webb—He asked me for a confectioner’s shop, and I showed
him Mr. De Brosse’s, where he went along with me ; and after
he asked for several sorts of sweetmeats, he asked for wafers ;
which being shown to him, he ‘asked Mr. De Brosse if he made
wafers for the Lutheran minister, and he was told he did, but I
do not remember that he bought any of them : [ have heard him
pray and preach several times, but do not remember that ever }
heard him pray for king George, but in general terms for the king.
1 am by trade a carpenter, and Ury applied to me to make him
up somethmg in Hughson?s house, which I bave beard since called

e
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‘an altar ; thav-Ury gave me directions for making it,-and said it
was 2 place to lay books on to read, or to put a'candle or a bottle
and glass on, or gther such like common uses ; it was two pieces
of board, which formed-a triangle, and was raised against the
wall, at the bottom of which was a shelf ; on each side there was
a place te hold a candle. ' :

~ Attorney Geuneral—Do you think if a man uanted a shelf or
ther place to lay a book on to read, or set a bott;e or g?ass on,
he wouid make it in that form?

Webb—I can’t say; peop}e may have odd humours, but 1
shouid not, _

Attorney Gener al—\V hen you made it, what did you takc 1t
for?

Webb—I .can’t say : 1 fo}lowed his directions.

Attorney General—Do you know any thing of Ur ry’s bemg
imprisoned in England 7 -

Webb—Ury did tell me that he was imprisoned in England :
for he said he had wrote a book there, and that thecritics laid
"hold of it, picked a hole in it and construed it treason ; but if it
was, he saxd it was contrary to his intenticns,

Attorney General—Mr. Webb, in your conversations together,
what hrave you heard him say about negroes ?

Webb—We were one day talking about negroes, and I said
IthOu’r it they had souls to be saved or lost as well as other
peopl_e Ury said he thought they were not proper objects of sal-
vation; I replied, what would you do with them then; what,
would you dama them all? No, says he, leave them to that
Great Deing that has made them,-he knows best what to do
- with them ; says he, they are of a slavish nature, it is the nature

of them to be siaves, give them learning, do them ali the good
you can, and put them beyond the condition of slaves, and in
return, they will cut your throats.

Conrt—Mr. Ut v, wouid you ask this thnese. any more quea*-
fions ?

Prisoner—No, sir, 1 have nothing more to as%;

- Court—Have you any more witnesses ?

Prisoner—Yes sir, I have some more, I desire that John
Campbell and Mrs. Campbell may be called.

- John Campbell and his wife sworn.

Prisoner—Mr. Campbell, did you ever see me at Hughson’s
house before | went there with you, and what passed there ?

. John Campbell—I neversaw him theére till I went to take pos-
session of the house at May day last, and then as we were go-
ing there togeiber, he said he did not know the way thither,

b
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and when we came down, he took Gerardus Comfort’s house for

. it; as for any -thing else, I know nothmg more of hlm, for I
tock him for a grave, sober, honest man. - - R :
Prisoner—Mrs. Campbell, will you please to gwe an account
of what you know of me, and what passed between Sarah Hugh-
son and me, when we went to fake possession of the house.
A.Cainphell—! went with riry husband andMr. Ury,enMay day
fast, to Hughson’s, to take possession of the house, and when we
came there, SarahHughson the daughter was in possession, and we.
told her she must go out of the house, for that my husband had

taken it : wheretupon Sarah Hughson swore and cursed at me; -

Mr. Ury said to her, how dare you talk so impertinently and sau-
cily to an old woman, jyou impudent hussey! go out'of the
house, or I will turn you out ; Sarah then swore mleerably, and
said yon have a house now, but shall not have one tong. 1
have often heard him pray and sing psalms, and he prayed by a
sick woman ; I never saw any harm by him; my husband and
- he were to keep school together.

- Court——Will you ask them any more questions?

Prisoner—No sir, 1 have nothing more. ' :

- Attorney General—If your honours please, as the prisoner has
been endeavouring to prove he is not a Romish priest, ‘and has
- already insisted on it asa part of his defence; I shall bey leave
~ to €xamine a witness or two to that point.

Court—Call them then, Mr. Attorney.

Joseph Hildreth, school master, and Richard Nor wood called
and sworn.

Attorney Genera.l—-—-‘ﬁr. Hildreth, will you give an account
of what you know of the prisoner, how you became acquau}ted
with him, and what has passed between him and you in conver-
sation from time to time,

Hildreth—What I have to say, sir, | have commitied to writ-
ing. fand produced a paper from his pocket.]

Chief Justice—~You must not read the paper; but you may
look into it to refresh your merory.

Hlldreth-—-The way I came to hear of, or know this Mr. Lrv

, that jast winter some time in Februar} , 1 happened to be
in compan} with 2 friend at Mr. Croker’s, and Mr. Webb, joiner,
called me aside and asked me what schoolI had and if I'w Gitld
incline to take a partner, one very well versed in the English,
Latin and Greek tongues? I answered what school I had I could
very weil manage myself, I had no inclination for a partner at
all: he said he was a good sober sort of 2 man, and understood
his business very well ; and if we conld agree, ke did not doubt
but it would do very well ; I answered him ! jaclined to be
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‘master of my own school alone, though it was not so large as
if 1 had a partner. - He seeing | had no inclination for him, did
not tell me who he was. ; .

Some time after, about seven or elght weeks, I had a little
business on board captain Griffiths, where I met with him and
‘Webb in.company, which was the first time I ever spoke to him,
then after our salutation of each other, he began to ask me
some guestions concerning my schoel and method of teaching ;
~after which we stepped in at Baker’s and took a serious glass to-
gether 5 at which time be fook a small book out of his pocket
{English and Latin) and construed (I think) the 117th psalm ; then
iaying the book on the table, I took it up, and was gomg to look
ou the title page, but he directly seized it out of my hands, and
told me I must not look into it, and put it into his pocket.

Another time at my school, I had some discourse with him
concverning Mr. Whitefield’s letter in answer to Mr. Wesley’s
sermon on {ree-grace, which letter he did not approve of at ali,
and told me he believed it was through the greai encouragement
the negroes had received from Mr. Whitefield, we had all the
disturbance, and that he believed Mr. Whitefield was; more of
2 Roman than any thing else, and he believed he came abroad
with no good design. Then I asked him what was the signifi-
cation of a non-juror, as I understood he pretended to be? and
he answered those that would not take the oath of allegiance,
as he did not ; 1 asked him why ? says he can you swear one
to be a bastard? -mo; no more can they say king J— was one;
and the difference between we non-jurers and others, in this;
we in the prayers for the king and royal family, mention no
names, as they do; I asked Inm if they prayed for the pre-
tender? he said, for him, let him be who he will, that was the
king, he mentioned no names. :

At another time, says he, you talk so muc.h against popery, I
beheve though you speak so much against it, you wil find you
have (or { think will have) a pope in your belly, for says he, the
absotution of the church of Rome is not half so bad as that of
the church of England at the visitation of the sick: but says I,

. 1 don’t approve of their eonfessing to priests, &c. says I there is
a deal of wickedness and deceit in it: says he, no, no, for
when any person makes confessions the priest does not know
who they be, for he does not so much as see them, but only
hears and absolves them : Then says I, I was mistaken. Oh!?
says he, they speak against the church of Rome, but don’t know
them ; their priests says he, are the most learned of men; the
articles of the church of England were made in distracted times,
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And I observed several times he said, we priests.” Says he, your
Roman priests will make you believe, and prove by the plain
rules of grammar, that black is white, and white black, and
that the wafer and wine is the real body and blood of Christ.

‘We were often in company, but the best part of our discourse.
was upon salvation by faith alone, which he would not allow;
nor predestination ; and he told me he really believed the moon to
be an inhabifed planet, and all the stars were inhabited ; or else
says he, I would not repeat that part of the nicene creed, be-
gotton of his father before all worlds ; and says he, many texis
of scripture confirm it to be so.

I was several times since in his company, but do nct remem-
ber any thing in particular relating to priests, &c. but the last
time I had any thing of discourse was about two days before I
heard him preach, and then in his room ; I seeing the altar
placed in the corner, I asked him what use that was for? first
he said only to lay books on, or for a candle to sit and read by 3
but I told him I could not think it, for 1 supposed it for the sa-
crament by its form and odd cclour, I begged him to let me
know what it was ; so after some time he sericusly told me it
‘was for the sacrament; and he told me, I think, every saint’s
day it was exposed, only covered with a piece of white linen, and
that he administered cn some proper days; and he told me they
received the wafer instead of bread, and white instead of red
wine : 1 asked, why the wafer? because, says he, the wafer is
more pure ; and no bread he thought pure enouvgh to represent
the body of our Lord ; then going to his small box, says he [
will get a piece and you shall taste it if you will, and he brought
me a piece, and I took and eat it.

I think he told me, that some time before he had baptized a
child in the house, but they used more ceremonies than we ; and
he talked as if they anointed and washed one another’s feet be
told me further, that at the time of the celebration, or at v;hat
time the sacrament was exposed, they bad lighted candles burning
to represent our Saviour as the light of the world ; and when I
€ame in to hear him preach, 1 accordingly saw it as he told me ;
for he told me before, that if I came on Sunday evening to hear
him, I could ree it, for the sacrament was on the aitar, covered
with a white llnen cloth, and there were three candles burning,
but mot a minute after I came in, he put out the candles, and put
his sacrament in his box, and locked them up.

Some time after I became thus acquainted with kim, Iw as
informed he kept a private meeting, and made use of tbe_
church form of prayer every Sunday evening, at the house of
Mr. Jehn Cangbel.!, @ his own bired room.
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My cunowty led me the next Sunday evening to go and hear
him preach, but when I came there he told me be did not make
u practice of greaching to any others but those of his own society,
~and those of his society did not make any practice of running to

any of ‘our churches or meetings, for he did not approve of any
such thing ; and as he was a non-jured minister, so he had a
society and members-of his own.

Afterwards he told me he had some company from Philadel-
phla (I think) and desired to be excused ; but next Sunday even-
ing, If I would call, he would be glad to see me.

The next Sunday evening I accordingly went, and heard him
discourse upon the second chapter of the second epistle of St. Pe-
ter, the 1st, 2d and 3d verses; and before he dismissed us, he
told us he would preack the next Wednesday following (being the
day his majesty began his happy reign) upon the 16th chapter of
Matthew, the 18th and 19th verses, adjoining to them the words
of our Lord to his disciples, whose soever sins ye remit, they
are remitted unto them, and whose soever sins ye retain, they are
retained : which discourse I did not hear.

Couneil—MNr. Lry » weuld you ask this w itness any questxon ?

Prisoner—No sir, I have nothing to ask him. -

Attorney General—Mr. Norwood, will you give the court
and jury an account of what you know of the prxsoner at the
bar? _

Norwood—I became acquainted with him last fall, and I
agreed with him in December to teach my children to write and
read ; that several times in conversation with him, he talked in
such a manner that I suspected him to be a popish priest. - He
used very often to miss coming to teach my children at the school
txme, and made frivolous excuses, and at last I was very angry
with him and discharged him; that in the evening he used very
often to pretend that he must go to pray by a sick person by the
“English church, that belonged fo his society, or that he must go
and pray with his society by the Engheh church :{z) whereupon
I once asked him to et me go along with him, byt he refused
me, and saidJdt was not proper for any one to go there who were
not of the society, which ovccasioned a jealousy in me, and I
had often 2 mind to have dogged him, to have seen where hé
went, and do not know how it bappened, but I never did ; that
one day I met Campbeil, the school master, in the street, who
said to me, what do you think? Webb has taken away Bis Rt

from me, and has put hin to a school master that lodges at

{z) Hughsor’s was near by it.
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Croker’s ; and Campbel! said, d—n him, he is a popish priest ;
and at lasi having a bad opinion of him, I discharged him, lest
he should inveigle my children, and I told him I would have
nothing more to say to him.

Court—Mr. Ury ¥ would you ask this w1tnes:. any thing ?

Prisoner—No sir.

Mr. Murray-—May it pleaqe your honours, and you, gentle-
men of the jury.

That the prisoner is a Romish emissary, sent according to
the intimation in general Oglethorpe’s letter, I think must be
concluded from what has been given ia evidence against him ;
and from the known principles of the Romish religion, it may be
judged what inducement the prisoner had to undertake so wicked
and diabolical a project. The letter of general Oglethorpe has
been offered by way of inducement, and in aid of other evidence
in general, to shew that there was a plot, and herein I appre-
hend we are justified by the precedents and authorities in lave

“before cited.

Mr, Smith, addressing himself to the court, proceeded as fol-
loweth. B

Before the prisoner enters upon his defence, we conceive it
will be proper to read to him some passages out of the sundry
books that declare the customs and usages of the church of Rome,
to which his practices among us, as dec*ared by the witnesses,

. bear some conformity ; and unless he can make It appear that
~ his practices are warranted by the usage of any other church,
we conceive they. will convince every body that he is a priest of
the Roman charch, and no other.

And first, as to the use of salt-—Peter de Moulin, in his book
entitled, Anatomie de la Messe, part 2, p. 94, gives us the form
of the priests exorcising salt, in order to prepare it for their
superstitious uses, in the following words; which, because the
prisoner professes himself a scholar, 1 shall first read in the
onginal, and then render it into English.

Exorciso te, creatura salis, per -Deum vivum, per Deum
verum, per Deum sanctum, per Deum qui te per Elisseum pro-
pheiam, o aquam mitti jussit, ut sanaretur sterilitas aquee; aut
efliciaris sal exsorcisatus, in salutem credentium, ut sis omnibns
te sumentibus, sanitas animee & corporis, & effugiat atque
discedat ab eo loco quo aspersus fueris; omnis phantasia & ne-
quitia, vel versutia diabolicee fraudis omnisque spiritus in " mundus
adjuratus, per eum qui venturus est judicare vivos & mortuos
& seeulum per ignem. . Amen.

140}
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In English thus—Creature of salt, I exorcise thee by the
iiving God, by the true God, by the holy God, by the God who
commanded thee to be put into the water by Elisha the propbet,
that the barrenness of the water might. be healefl; that thou
mayest become salt exorcised, for the salvation of them that
believe ; that thou mayest be to all who take thee health of soul-
and body, and that from the place where thou art sprinkled, may
By and depart every appaxition and wickedness or craftiness or
diabolical fraud, and every unclean spirit adjured by him who
will come to judge the quick and-the dead, and the world by
fire. Amen,

As tothe popish use of salt in baptism, we have a most authen- |
tic testimony in their catechism, edited by the decree of the
council of Trent, in chapter 9, De Baptisimi Sacramento, |

The 66th question is—Cur ejus qu baptizatur, ori sal ad-
moveatur ? ' :

Responsio—Accedunt ad exorcismum alize ceremonide, quarum
singulee ut quee mysticee sint propriarg, atq; illustrem significa-
tionem habent, nam cum sal in illius os qui ad baptsmum
adducendus est, inseritur hoc significari perspicuum est, cum
fidei Doctrina &Gratise dono consequaturum esse, ut a peccatorum
putredine liberetur, saporemque bonorum operum percipiat, &
divinse sapientz pabulo delectetur. |

In Engiish thus-—@. 66. Why is salt put to the mouth of the
person that is baptized ? .

Answer. There are other- ceremonies added to exorcism, of
which some being mystical, have a proper and remarkable sig-
~ nification ; for which salt is put in the mouth of him who is
to be brought to baptism, it is clear that this is signified, that
be shall obtain by the doctrine of faith and gift of grace; a free-
dom fro;: the corruption of his sins, partake of the savour. of
good works, and be delizhted with the food of divine wisdom.

As to the point of absolution—We have the Jesuits’ doctrine
concerniing it at large, in a book, entitled, Les Provinci-
ales, ou Lettres ecrites par Louis Montalte, a un provincial de
ses amis et au R, R. P. P. Jesuits sur la Morale a la politique de
ces Peres.  Torn. 2, lettre 10. 1 shall only cite one or two pas-
sages from this letter page 50, which quotes Le P. Bauni, q. 15,
i these words : , _

On peut absoudre celui qui avoue, que Desperance detre
absous I’ & porie a’pecher, avec plus de facilite qu® il neut fait,
sais cette esperance.

“Et le P. Caussin defendant cette proposition dit. p. 211, de sa’
Resp. a la Theol. mor. que si elle v etoit veritable, I’ usage de ia

Y
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| confession sergit interdit a la plu'part du mondeet gqwil i’y
auroit plus d’ autre remede aux pecheurs qu’ une branche &
arbre et une corde.” S : :
- In English thus—A man may be absplved, says father Bauni,
who confesses that  the hope of absolution encouraped him to
commit sin with the greater ease, which he had not done with-
out such hope. And father Caussin defending this proposition,
says, that if this was not true, the use of confession would be
forbidden to the greatest part of the world ; and sinners would
have no other remedy left but the limb of a tree and an halter.

This is the doctrine of the charch of Rome, contrary fo that

- of St. Paul, who says, shall we continue in sin that grace may
abound ? God forbid. :

May it please your honours, this is all that we shall mention
at present, that if the prisoner pleases, he may take notice .of
them in his defence, and shew if he can, that he had another

- warrant than the church of Rome, for the like practices proved

- by the witnesses.

Court—Mr, Ury, now is the time for you to make your de-
fence.

‘Prisoner—May it please the king’s judges, and the gentlemen
of the jury. _ B

[Here the prisoner read over again that part of his speech
which is set forth before, and then proceeded as followeth.]

And as to the second indictment wherein I stand charged with
being an ecclesiastic person made by authority from the See of
Rome that | have celebrated masses given absolutions and that
I have acknowledged myself to be a priest of the Church of
Rome all which cannot is not proved. As to my professing my-
self to be an ecclesiastic of the church of Rome is very improb.
able if it be comsidered that no gentleman who is a priest
would be so childish as to tell any person out of communion that
he isa priest there must be as [ have been- informed very good
proof that a person is a Roman catholic before a priest will have
any thing to say to him and that proof consists in the persons
producing a regular certificate from their last confessor and as to
my celebrating of masses it is very unlikely if it be cousidered
that if the evidences saw me celebrating of masses they must
have seen more, seeing there can be no mass without two at
the altar, and by the priest’s breviary and directory for celebrat-
ing of high mass three priests two officials and at some masses
four officials twelve a clock  As to absolution it is well known
by the learned that the sacrament of penance must precede
which if the evidences are asked what it means believe they
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can give ro account of [t is not persons professing themselves
Roman catholics by going to mass or bemng brought up iz toat
way that have any thing to say to a priest and as to those who
were not born within the paie of that church if not iearned that
know any thing of her doctrines or worship much less tc con-
verse with priests as priests nay before they can partake of any
privileges of that church they must be rebaptized and inducted
Now how come these persons to know so much, to be acquainted
with priests and their secrets who know not what mass is nor
what the difference of a vesper from a cempline or a compline
from a nocturn nor the hours of mass no more than we were
swallows shelter in the winter, but by conjeecture ; asto my
books and writings I cannot be deemed « Roman catholic either
a spiritual person or laick [ believe it cannot with reason be con-
cluded that a person having a mass bock in possession must
thevefore be a papist I so 2 man having the alcoran must be a
Mahometan and a presbyterian with a common prayer must from
thence be achurchman but I believe that wiil not be allowed by
any—The writicn book was transcrived from the secret history
of Eurcpe and after some remarks 1 told colenel Beekman it was
a very nmpd thing and that if 2 priest wrote it he was a very
foolish one But now suppose ti_le;-e lings are my own thoughts
does that make me penable when they were never exposed in
print and therefore cannot be libellous. T remember in the case
of Alzernooun Sidney who was beheaded in king James 1. reign
for w r:*. g5 found in his closet which were of his own compos-
myg anc this was thought so wicked and unreasonable an action
that king William and his parliament took of the attainder of
high trezson and registéred it murder  And gentlemen 1 believe
-yeu cannct be brought to think that such a venerable pious and
iearned gentieman as Mr, Comyns could make such a mistake
as to teke a roman pricst for a nom-juring minister nor yet the
gentleman when ke recommended me to as & perscil wor-
thy their noties and benevolence which accordingly took effect
for T had my passage paid and profided for until [ could get into
business—genticmen the mistake the major part of the world
Bies under 35 their apprebending that a non-juring priest must be
a popizh pricst whereas tiere is no truer protestants for they are
tar from ‘mw;g any regard to a pretender or for setting on the
throne a popish prince to be head of a protestant church The
doctrines they assert and stand by is non-resistance and passive
ebedience which is now as vigorously maintained as ever it was
in any reign  And I believe that there is no non- -juror either cler-
gy or laity but would shew themselves such true subjects to the
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present king George as to take the oaths of allegiance and su-
premacy [have now no more to say but hope and pray that
what has been offered will be considered with minds unpreju-
diced minds prepossessed with no opinions with minds in a dili-
gent search after truth You being gentlemen | hope fearing -
God reverencing conscience hating partiality lovers of truth and
innocency and having a tender regard to life.(y)

Mr. Smith summed up the evidence for the king, and addressing
himself to the court and jury, proceeded as followeth.

Though this work of darkness, in the contrivance of a horrible
plot, to burn and destroy this city, has manifested itself in many
blazing effects, to the terror and amazement of usali; yet the
secret springs of this mischief lay long concealed : this destructive
scene has opened by slow degrees : but now, gentlemen, we have
at length great reason to conclude; that it took its rise from a
foreign nfluence ; and that it originally depended upon causes,
that we ourselves little thought ¢f, and which, perhaps, very few
of the inferior and subordinate agents were mtimately acquainted
with.

The monstrous wickedness of this plot would probably among
strangers impeach its credit; but if it be considered as the con-
trivance of the public enemy, and the inhuman dictate of a bloody
religion, the wonder ceases. .

‘What more cruel and unnatural can be conceived, than what
Rome has contrived ; yea what more savage and barbarous, than
what popery has attempted, and sometimes executed, for the
extirpation of that which the papists call heresy? 'We need not
go so far from home as the vallies of Piedmont, nor rake into the
ashes of the anclent Waildenses and Albigenses, for tragical in-
stances of popish cruelty. 'We need not remind you of the mas-
sacre at Paris, nor the later desclations in France, -nor mention

- the horrible slanghters of the duke d’Alva, in the Low Countries.

‘We need not recount the many millions of lives, that in remote
countries, and different ages, have been sacvificed to the Roman
idel ; nor measure out to you that ocean of foreign blood with
which the scarlet whore hath made herself perpetually drunk.

(») This and the other part of the speech, or defence, delivered by
the prisoner, being taken from his paper, which he readin court, from
whose hands it was obtuined the next morning ; and being wrote in the
prisoner’s own hand, without stops or pointing, he apologized therefor
to the person he delivered it to ; and as there were none in the original,
the compiler would not risk altering the sense by printing it with any;
thoughi it may be remarked, that those who were somewhat acquainted
with the man, were of opinion, he was not very capable of making them.
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Mo, gentlemen, the histories of our native country will give us
a formidable idea of popery ; and inform us of the detestable prin-
ciples of that religion: witness the blood of our own martyrs
(who perished in prisqns and at the stake) without beginning
higher than my lord Cobham, and recounting their number down
to the end of queen Mary’s reign. _

‘Witness that execrable design to blow up king, lords, and
cominons, in the gunpowder treason, contrived by the papists:
that intestine fire that broke out in the late unnatural civil war,
the coals whereof were blown up by them. The tloody massacre
of many thousands of protestants by the Irish papists, about the
same time: the restless spirit of that party, which has broke out
in plots in almost every reign since the reformation. The arbi-
trary and illegal measures that preceded the glorious revolution 3
and the unnatural rebeliion within our memory: these are all
evidences of the destructive tendency of that bloody religion,
which, in order to promote its interests, never boggles at the
vilest means, can sanctify the most execrable villainies; and to
encourage its votaries, will cannonize for saints 2 Guy Faux and
others, some of the greatest monsters of iniquity that ever trod
upon the face of the earth!

Gentlemen, if the evidence you have heard is sufficient to pro-
duce a general conviction that the late fires in this city, and the
murderous design against its inhabitants, are_the effects of a
Spanish and popish plot, then the mystery of this injquity, which
has so much puzzied us, is unveiled, and our admiration ceases:
ali the mischiefs we have suffered or been threatened with, are
but a sprout from that evil root, a small stream from that over-
flowing fountain of destruction, that has often deluged the earth
with slaughter and blood, and spread ruin and desolation far and
wide. :

We need not wonder to see a popish priest at this bar, as a
prime incendiary ; nor think it strange that an Englishman of that
religion and character should be concerned in so detestable a
design. What can be expected from those that profess a religion
that is at war with God and man ; not only with the truths of
the Holy Scriptures, but zlso with cemmon sense and reason
and is destructive of all the kind and tender sensations of human
nature? When a man, contrary to the evidence of his senses,
can believe the absurd doctrine of transubstantiation; can give
up his reason to a blind obedience and an implicit faith ; can be
p.rsuaded to believe that the most unnatural crimes, such as
treason and murder, when done in obedience to the pope, or for
the service of the holy church, by rooting out what they cal
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heresy, will merit heaven: 1 say, when'a maz ‘has imbibed such
prmmples as these, he can eas:Iy divest himself of every thing that
is human but his whape, he is capahle of any villainy, even as bad
as that which is charged on the prisoner at the bar.

[Thence Mr. Smith proceeded to observe on the several parts

of the indictment, that were necessary to be proved, in order to
convict the prisoner ; particularly, that Quack did burn his ma--
Jesty’s house in the fort; that the prisoner did counsel, abet, pro-
cure and encourage the said negro to commit that felony. He
observed, that the three witnesses, Mary Burton, William Kane
and Sarab Hughson, had fully proved the fact. He reminded the
jury of the caution that the court had taken i favour of the pri-
soner, 0 that none of the three witnesses had heard the testimony
which was given by those which had been examined before
them ; the particulars of which evidence is before mentioned, and
the observatiom thereon, are here omitted for brevity sake.]
- And then concluded—Thus, gentlemen, nothing remains to be
considered but the credit of the witnesses. Indeed two of them
have been concerned in the plot; but we have proved them
{(under their present circumstances) to be legal witnesses. They
all give a consistent account of the fact ; and if you believe theiz
testimony, we think you cannot avoid finding the prisoner guilty.
You have heard the prisoner’s defence ; which, we conceive, does
not affect the main parts of the accusation: he tells you that ke
must have been a lunatic to have stayed in town after notice, if
be had been guilty : true ; and in some sense he must be supposed
to have been a lunatic from the time he first concerned himself in
this detestable plot. Gentlemen, all wickedness is in some sort
madnpess ; and the degrees of it rise in proportion to the enormity
of the erime ; and when men have filled up the measure of their
iniguity, and are ripe for ruip, they are commonly cut off from
ali the means of escaping it,

As to his rough language to Sarah Hughson at Campbells, on
wuich he lays scme stress; this may be accounted for, as pro-
ceeding from other causes than his innocence ; either from a per-
sonal resentment of a supposed injury to himself, who wanted
the roomn shie took up in that house ; or perhaps with a design to
make a snow that he never had been acquainted with ber; for
priests, be tells ug, are very artful and cunning.  But be this how
it will, we conceive it caanot amount to a disproof of the main
chargﬂ against the prisoner.

As to what he alieges concerning Quack, Hughson and his
wife, and the creature that died with them, not having accused
kim; we think very little can be inferred from thence in his
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favour. As to @uaek, he accused many in general terms more

“than he particulyrly named ; and indeed the confession that QGuack -

made was in the Iturries of death, after he was fastened to the
stake. Hughscn, hiswife, and the creature that died with them,
confessed nothing at all ; therefore; nothing can be inferred from
their not accusing the prisoner. It seems strange, that Mr. Ury
could not give us the name of that creature that died with Hugh-
son and his wife, secing as Mary Burton says, he was so well
acquainted with her as to have had the liberty of undressing him-
gelf in her bedroom. |

As to the prisoner’s appeal to God for his innocence ; this we
conceive witnesses notling in bis faveur, but rather against him
for we often find, that the wickedest of men will attempt to cloak
theiv villamnies with the same practice, and good men are ever
sparing I their appeals to heaven, even in cases where their in-
nocence is concerned. | R

He says that it does not follow from his being at Hughson’s, that

he was guilty of the plot: true ; but admitting that he had used
that house, his pretence to John Campbell, of not knowing it,
must have been a piece of craft ; and it renders the evidence of
his being concerned in the wickedness carried on there, the more
probable. _ '

He says a priest is more qrtful and cunning than to trust ne-
groes, if so foolish or non compos mentes as to plot ; but gentle-
men, this proves nothing in the prisoner’s favour; for supposing
a priest to be concerned m this plot, it was too extensive for him
to execute it alcne, and therefore he must trust part of it to such
tools as hie could ﬁnd

Thus gentlemen, I have replied to the principal part of the
prisoner’s defence, from which we conceive there appears no-
thing material for his justification. As to his being a Roman priest,
this was only offered as an inducement to the credit of the tes-
timony of the witnesses who were brought to prove his being 2n
accessary to the burning of his maiesty’s house in the fort ; and
was allowed by the court to be given in evidence on this trial,
upon the authorities which were produced only for this intent.—
That he'is a priest is what he has often confessed and never de-
nied } he has 2iso confessed that he is a non-juring priest, and
consequently bears no gcod will to the present goverament. But
we have no evidence of his having confesced himself a Roman’
priest. That he was reputed such, by some of his acquaintance,
is clear from what William Kane bas told you ; that he approvea
of their practices, seems evident from his conversation with M-

lildreth. |
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You have doubtless, observed that before the prisoner made
his defence, we read to him (in Latin) sundry passages, and one
of them out of an authentic book of the -Roman church, being
their catechism, published by a decree of the council of Trent:
these passages we translated into English, in his hearing, which
shew the usages of that church to be agreeable to the p'actlce
of the prisoner in this city. We have shewn from the writings
of the Jesuits the Popish doctrines concerning absclution ; and
to what an extent they carry that imposture and cheat upon man-
kind : this also has been read to the prisoner (in French) and
also translated into English. We urged that the prisoner ought
(if he could) to shew that he was a priest of some other com-
munion that maintained these usages, and preached such doc-
trines 3 if not, his performing his priest’s office in Latin, his bap-
tising w;th salt, his use of the crucifix, his exposing the sacra-
ment by lighted candles, his preaching upon those texts upon
which the pepists pretend to found the Pope’s supremacy, and
- his declared power to forgive sins as well as God Almighty, will

undoubtedly fix the brand of a Roman priest upon him. "To all
this the prisoner has made nothing that can be properly called a .
defence. He says, indeed, that “there is no proof of his having
confessed himself a Roman priest, nor that he has celebrated
mass: he tells us also that non-jurers are not papists, that their
principle is passive obedience and non-resistance ; and seems wil-
ling to sereen himself under that denomination.

But, gentlemen, though we have not proved that the prisoner
is a Roman priest, by his own confession, or his celebration of
mass ; yet he has not denied that the instances proved against
him, are notorious badges of popery ; and such as we conceive
will leave It past any reasonable doubt, that if he is a priest at
all, he is a priest of the Romish church.

Howex er, gentlemen, as I observed before, the principle point -
I this trial, is to prove the prisomer was an accessary to the
burning of the king’s house in the fort; if you find also that he
is a Roman priest, then though he is guilty, as the indictment
charges him, and has acted a most wicked part in the public and
private mischiefs that have troubled us, yet he has acted consistent
pnough with the principle of that corrupt and apostate church,
whereof he is a member ; and ali that the witsesses have de-
clared against him, is the more easy to be believed.

Gentlemen, I shall add no more ; but leave you to the direc- .
tion of the court, and your owsn consciences, not doubting but
that you will weigh the evidence which has heen produced, @nd
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give such a verdict in the present case as will be consistent with
‘your oath and duty.

Then the chief justice.charged the jury, and a contable being
sworn to attend them, they withdrew ; and having staid out
about a quarter of an hour, returned, and found the prisoner
guilty of the indictment.

i t—

SUPREME COURT.
THURSDAY, JuLY 30.

Présent, the chief justice, the second and third justices.

The ng against ‘Murray’s Adam, Livingston’s Tom, Car-
penter’s Tickle, Niblet’s Sandy, negroes.

The prisoners having been indicted for the conspiracy, were
set to the bar, and arraigned, and all of them pleaded gmlty to
the indictment. .

The King against Elliston’s Billy, negro.

Poclamation having been made, and none appearing to prose-
cute, the prisoner was discharged.

i ——

SCPREME COURT.
SATURDAY, AUGUST 1.

Presenf the second and third justices.

Court opened and adjourned to Monday the third mstant
10 o’clock m the morning.

-The King against eighteen negroes, viz. Sleydal’s Jack, Nib-
let’s Sandy, Carpenter’s Tickle, David Provost’s Low, J. Brown’s
Jeffery, Peter Low?’s Sam, Murray’s Jack and Adam, Wendo-
- ver’s Tob}, Breasted’s Jack, Horsefield’s Ceesar, Furman’s Harry,
Kelly’s London, Thomas’s York, Meyers Cohen’s Windsor, Liv-
ingston’s Tom, Bound’s Gosport, Hyer’s Tom.

The prisoners being set to the bar, pleaded his majesty’s par-
don ; which was read and allowed of.

Court adjourned till to-morrow morning, 11 oclock.

This day a warrant was issued for apprehending the negroes,
John alias Jack, and Cambridge, belonging to Mr. Codwise,
Ceaesar, to I-'"ael Horsefield, and Guise alias Gaiie, to Timothy
Horsefield, all of King’s county, being charged with being con-
cerned in tbe conspiracy ; and they were all but Jack taken ac-
cordingly, and committed to the jail of this city.
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SUPREME COURT.
Fripavy, JoLy 31.

" Present, the chief justiée, the second and third justices. |
Court opened and adjourned till to-morrow morning 11 o’clodk.

et ——

SUPREME COURT.
MonDAY, AUGUsT 3.

'Present, the chief justice, the second justice.
Court adjourned till to-mérrow morning 11 o’clock.

» e ——

SUPREME COURT.
Turspavy, AuGusT 4.

Present, the Chief Justice, the second cnd third justices.

The King against John Ury alias Jury.

On motion of Mr. Attorney General, the prisoner was called
up to judgment, and being set to the bar and asked whether he
had aught to say in arrest thereof, why sentence of death should
not be pronounced against him? ? he had nothing to offer ; but
requested the favour of the court, that they would allow him as -
much time as they could before his execution, for the settling of
his private affairs.

Then the Chief Justice (after taking notice of the heinousness
of the offence of which he was convicted, the dangerous and
pernicious tendency of the doctrines of the church of Roine,
which emboldened her disciples to embark in the most hazardous,
wicked, and inhumane enterprizes, which he illustrated from
several passages cited from the works of the late archbishop
Tillotson) he exhorted the criminal to make a candid and i ingenu- .
ous confession of his guilt, and an ample dnacovery of his accom-
plices in this dark confederacy, and to' improve the time the
court would indulge him with to the best advantage, in order for
his preparation for another world, whither be was soon gomg to
give an account of his actions.

He was sentenced to be hanged next Saturday, the 15th inst.

An ordinance published for enlarging the term of mttmg of
this court to the first Tuesaay in September next.

- Court adjowrned till Tuesday, the 11th inst. 11 o’clock in the
morning. _

SUPREME COURT.
TuESDAY, AUGUST 1.

?resent the Chief Justice,
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The King against Juan alias Wan, a Spanish negro.

Ordered, that Juan alias Wan, be executed according to his
former sentence, on- Saturday next, between the hours of 9 and
1 of the same day. :

Court adjourned till to-morrow morning, 11 o’clock.

e

SUPREME COURT.
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 12,

Present the Chief Justice.
Court opened and adjourned till Tuesday, the 18tn inst. 10
o clock in the morning.

et ——

SATURDAY, AUGUST 15.

This bemg the day” ‘appointed for the execution of John Ury,
his honour the lieutenant governor, was pleased, upon the hum-
ble petition of the said Ury, to respite the same tiil Wednesday :
following.

Juan alias Wan de Sylva, the Spanish negro, condemped f01
the conspiracy, was this day-exccuted according to sentence ;
he was neatly dressed in.a white shirt, jacket, drawers, and
stockings, behaved decently, prayed in Spanl_sh, kissed a crucifix,
insisting on his innocence to the last. )

SUPREME COURT.
TUESDAY, AUGUST 18.

Present, the Chief Justice, the second justice.
The court opened and adjourned tﬂl Thursday, the 20th inst.
11 o’clock in the morning.

L

e

SUPREME COURT.
THURSDAY, AUGUST 20.
Present, the Chief Justice. |
Court opened and adjourned till Tuesday, the 25th inst.
SUPREME COURT.
TUESDAY, AUGUST 25,
Present, the Chief Justice.

‘Court opened,
'The King against John Ury.
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The prisoner, John Ury, bemg set 1o the bar, and asked
what he bad to say why execution should not be awarded against
him- according to his former sentence ? and having mothing to
allege,

Ordered, that the said John Ury be executed accordmg to the
sald sentence, on Saturday next, between the howrs of 9 and 2
of the same day.

Court adjourned till Monday, the 31st inst.

SATURDAY, AUGUST 28.
This day Jobn Ury was executed according to sentence. Be-
~ ing asked by the sheriff whether he had any speech or paper to
deliver? he answered he had given one to his friend, or Webb
(the person who attended him at the gallows:) he repeated
somewhat of the substance of it before he was turned off: a
copy of this paper was made in the jail (from one delivered by

Ury himself in his own band writing) from which the following
was taken,

THE LAST SPEECH OF JOHN URY.

Feliow Christians—I am now going to suffer a death attended
with ignominy and pain; but it is the cup that my heavenly fa-
ther has put into my hand, and I drink it with pleasure; it &s
the cross of my dear redeemer, Ibear it with alacrity; knowing
that all that live godly in Christ Jesus, must suffer persecution
and we must be made in some degree partakers of his sutferings
before we can share in the glories of his- resurrection: for he
went not up to glory before he ascended Mount Calvary 5 did
not wear the crown of glory before the crown of thorns. And
I am to appear before an awful and tremendous God, a bein
of infinite purity and vnerring justice, 2 God who by no means
will clear the guﬂty that cannot be reconciled either to sin or
sinners ; now this is' the being at whose bar I am to stand, in
the presence of this God, the possessor of heaven and earth, I
lift up my hands and smemnly protest’ I am innocent of what IS
laid to my charge: 1 appeal to the great God for my non-know-
ledge of Hewson, his wife, or the creature tbat was hanged
with thems, I never saw them living, dying, or dead ; nor never
had [ any knowledge or confederacy with white or black asto
any plot: and upop the memorials of the body and blood of - my
dearest lord, in the creatures of bread and wine, in- which I
have commemorated the love of my-dying lord, I protest that
the witnesses are perjured ; 1 never knew the perjured witnesses
but at my trial. But for a removal of 2ll scruples that may arise
after my death, I shall give my thoughts on some points.
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First—I firmly believe and attest, that it is not.in the powey
of man to forgive sin; that it is the prerogative only of the
great God to dispense pardon for sins ; and that those who dare -
pretend to such a power,; do in some degree commit that great
and unpardomable sin, the sin against the Holy Spirit, because they
pretend to that power which their own consciences proclaim to
be a lie, _

Again, I solemnly attest and believe, that a person having
cdommitted crimes that have or might have proved hurtful or
destructive to the peace of society, and does not discover the
whole scheme, and all the persons concerned with them, cannot
obtain pardon- from God: and it is not the taking any oath or
oaths that ovght.to hinder him {from confessing his guilt, and all
that he knows about it; for such obligations are not only sinfu¥,
but unpardonable, if net broken : now a person firmly behevmg
this, and knowing that an eternal state ef happiness or misery
depends upon the performance or non-performance of the above-
mentioned- things, cannot, will not trifle with such important
affairs.

I have no more to say by way of clearing my innocence,
knowing that to a true christian unprejudiced mind, I must ap-
pear guiltless 3 but however, | am not very solicitous about it. [
rejoice, and it is now.my comfort (and that will support me and
protect me from the crowd of evil spirits that I must meet with
in my flight 1o the region of bliss assigned me) that my conscience
speaks peace 10 me.

Indeed, it may be shocking to some serious christains, that the
holy God should suffer innocence to be slain by the hands of cruel
and bloody persons; (I mean the witnesses who swore against
me at my trial,) indeed, there may be reasons assigned for it;
but, as they may be llahle to. objections, I decline them; and

snall only say, "that this is one of the dark providences of the
great God, in his wise, just and good government of this lower
ea-th

In fine, I depart this waste, this howling wilderness, with a
mind serene, free from all malice, with a forgiving spirit, so far
as the gospel of my dear and only redeemer obliges and enjoins
ine to, hoping and praying, that Jesus, who alone. is the giver of
yepentance, will convince, conquer and enlighten my murderers’
souls, that they may publicly confess their horrid wickedness
before God and the world, so that their souls may be saved in
the day of the Lord Jet"us. ' v

And now, a word of advice to you, spectators behold me
launching into eternity ; senously, solemnly view me, and ask
yourselves severally, how stands the case with me? die I must:

i
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am I prepared to meet my Lord when the midnight cry is
echoed forth ? shall I then have the wedding garment on? Oh,
sinners! trifle no longer ; consider life hangs on 2 thread ; here
to-day and gone to-morrow ; forsake your sins ere ye be forsaken
forever: heatken; now is God awfully calling you to repent,
warning you by me, his minister and prisoner, to embrace Jesus,
to take, to lay hold on him for your alone saviour, In order to
escape the wrath to come ; no longer delay, seeing the summons
may come before ye are awsre, and you standing before the bac
of a God who is a consuming flre out of the Lord Jesus Christ,
should be hurled, be doomed to that place, where their worm
dies pot, and their fire is never to be quenched. (z)

Note.—This copy differs from that supposed to have been
printed at Philadelphia soon after Ury’s execution, which perhaps
.might have been altered and corrected by some of his associates;
@s also that of his defence made at his trial, which was printed
with it ; for that in the foregoing trial was taken from a copy
literally transcribed from one delivered in his own hand writing,
without points ; it was therefore printed with Ury’s mis-spellings,
and unpointed, that the reader may have a specimen of his scho-
larship, and from thence con_}ecture, whether the defence and
dying speech were of his own genuine préduct. '

The following account concerning this person, comes from a
gentleman who bad several conversations with him between the
time of his sentence and execution, who says Ury informed him,

That his father was secretary to the South Sea Company, but
died when the said Ury was young.

That after the death of his father he was taken care of by a
gentleman who bore the character of a non-juror: but who, he
had since reasaon to believe, was a Jesuit. _

That he was educated at two universities. But what univer-
sities they were, he did not care to tell me.

That afterwards he became a non-juring clergyman ; and that
the head of their society was one Dr. Clarke.

That while in this character, he was taken up and tried for
writing a book against the government ; of which he was found
guilty : upon this account, a chapel he had of his own, and which
brought him in 50L. r-:t‘erlmg per annum, was seized into the hands
of the government, and he himself escaped with his life only
through the character and interest of his friends. Being thus
reduced to difficult and disgraceful erwcumstances, he could not
bear to stay In a place where he had once hived in honcur and |
credit ; and this occasioned bis removal into America.

() See Langhorn’s dyinlg speech, State Trials, 2d volume.
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Says the geuntlenian, l had a great cunosﬁy to know how iar this
account of lnmeelf was true ; and he having often told me that
he was mtimately a_c_quamted with a gentleman of distinguished
worth and character in London, with “whom § had some corres-
pondence by letters; 1 wrote to that gentleman, desiring, if he
knew any thing of this Jobn Ury, that he would give me a par-
ticular account of him and his circimstances.

In answer to my request, he informed me—That John Ury’s
father was a secretary in the South Sea, but dismissed before the
great advance of it in 1720 ; se that he had no share in those
gains: that when he died he left his family in the utmost distress
and poverty. This Johun Ury had been a soit of a shop-boy, to
carry messages, but educated to no business or profession,

His highest ambition was to be a common servant in a family.
He professed great religion, went often to worship with the dis-
senters, but always communicated with the church of Engiand,
He never heard of his writing against the government, nor be-
lieved hum capable of it, beu,g without education : at last, being
disappointed in most of his designs, be fell into distraction. From
which time this gentleman heard nothing of him, till the melan-
choly news from America, which was about the space of three
years.

Bt

SUPREME, COURT.
Moxpavy, AvcusT 31.

Present, the chief justice, the second and third Justlces.

The grand jury being called, and appearing, were discharged

The I&xrg, against John Corry, dancing-master.

John Corry, IH}deChed of the conspiracy, being placed at the
bar, and no person appearing to prosecute, was discharged by
proclamation.

The king, against Andrew Ryan, Edward E\el[y, John Coffin,
Edward ’\.Iurphy Peter Conolly, David Johnson.

The prisoners, alvo impeached of the conspiracy, being placed
at the bar and proclamations made, and no cne appeanng to
prosecute, they were discharged.

- Court adjourned til to-morrow morning, 9 o’clock.

Evidence affecting John Corry.——Notes of Mary Burton and
Willlam Kase’s eramlrau{m, 13th Juse. W illam Kane’s ex-
ammnation, No. V, § 3, 6.

Evidence affecting A"‘idi”ﬂ." Rvan.—Mary Burton®s deposition,
No. ViL
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Evidence affecting Edward Kelly, soldier.~William Kane’s
examination, No. II, § 10, 11. _See Will (Ward’s) negro’s con-
fession at his execution, upon which only Kane himself was taken
up, § 3, 4.. .

Evidence affecting John Coffin.—Wiltiam Fane's exammatlon,

No. 1L, § 1, 8,5, 6,9, Sarabh Hughson’s examination, 8th July,
¢2. 10th July, ¢ 16. Dut his person exactly answered her
description In her first examination. Mary Burton’s deposition,
No. VIII, § 5. William Kane’s examination, No, V.

Ewdence affecting Edward Murphey.—William Kane’s ex-
amination, No. IIl.  Mary Burton’s deposition, No. V1, VIIE.

Evidence affecting Peter Connolly.—Wiliiam Kane’s examina-
‘tion, No. II, § 10. '

Evidence affecting David Johnson.—William Kane’s examina-
tion, No. IV, ' :

, FRIDAY, SEPTEMBER 4. ’

This day his honour the lientenant-governor, by and with the
advice of his majesty’s council, issued 2 proclamation, command-
ing and directing Thursday, the 24th day of September, instant,
to be set apart and ebserved as a day of public and general
thanksgiving to Almighty God, for his late mercies vouchsafed
unto us, in delivering his. majesty’s subjects of this province from
the destruction with which they were so generally threatened by
this horrible and execrable conspiracy.

e —

THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 24.

~ This being the day appointed by his honour the Leutenant-
governor’s proclamation of the 14th instant, to be observed
throughout this province, as a day of public thanksgiving, for the
deliverance of his majesty’s subjects here from the destruction
wherewith they were so generally threatened by the late exe-
crable compu‘af._y, the same was decently and reverently ob-
served accordingiy.
Thomas Hughson_. (father of Jobn Hughson, executed,) and
four of his sons, viz. Richard, Willlam, Nathaniel and Walter,
having been indicted by the first grand jury, as parties concerped
in the conspiracy, they still remained under confinement in West-
chester county jail, and from thence petitioned the judges of the
supreme court this day, as followeth : .

[42]





